
1 

Municipal Stability Board 

Wednesday, February 17, 2021 at 11:00 a.m. 
Virtual Public Meeting  
via Microsoft TEAMS 

https://bit.ly/msb02172021 
I. Call to Order

A. Roll Call

B. Approval of January 20, 2021 Minutes

II. Public Comment

A. 2-minute limit

III. Correspondence

A. Treasury Update

B. Retirement Pension Payment Deficiency Update

IV. New Business

A. Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Certifications of Compliance (Resolution 2021-5)

i. Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority (2 systems)

ii. Beecher Metropolitan District

iii. City of East Lansing

iv. City of Escanaba

v. City of Fraser (2 systems)

vi. Gratiot County Road Commission

vii. Marquette City Board of Light and Power

viii. City of St. Johns

ix. City of Southfield (2 systems)

x. Suburban Mobility Authority for Regional Transportation

xi. Wexford County Road Commission

https://bit.ly/msb02172021


2 

B. Local Government Request for Removal from Corrective Action (Resolution 2021-6)

i. Cadillac City Housing Commission

C. Board Removal from Corrective Action (Resolution 2021-7)

i. Gratiot County Road Commission

ii. Marquette Board of Light and Power

iii. Wexford County Road Commission

D. Corrective Action Plan Noncompliance (Resolution 2021-8)

i. Alma City Housing Commission

V. Public Comment

A. 2-minute limit

VI. Board Comment

VII. Adjournment



 
MUNICIPAL STABILITY BOARD 

 

Wednesday, January 20, 2021 
11:00 a.m. 

 

Virtual Public Meeting via Microsoft TEAMS 
 

Draft 
Meeting Minutes 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Eric Scorsone called the meeting to order at 11:02 a.m. 
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Three  
Eric Scorsone – Flint, MI 
John Lamerato – Sterling Heights, MI 
Barry Howard – Longboat Key, FL 
 
Let the record show that three board members eligible to vote were present. A quorum was present. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A motion was made to approve the December 16, 2020 board meeting minutes by Barry Howard and 
supported by John Lamerato. The Board unanimously approved the December 16, 2020 meeting minutes. 3 
ayes and 0 nays.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comment. 
 

CORRESPONDENCE 
Nick Brousseau presented the Board with the Treasury update, which included an upcoming Board corrective 
action plan and monitoring review schedule. 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
APPROVALS AND DISAPPROVALS OF CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN(S) FROM 1 LOCAL GOVERNMENT(S) (1 
PLAN) (RESOLUTION 2021-1) 
Nick Brousseau was asked to review the Treasury recommendations for Approval and Disapproval of 
Corrective Action Plans from one local government (Resolution 2021-1) with the Board: 
 

• St. Clair City Housing Commission (Approval) 
 

A motion was made to approve the Approvals and Disapprovals of Corrective Action Plans (Resolution 2021-1) 
by John Lamerato and supported by Barry Howard.  
 
The Board unanimously approved the Approvals and Disapprovals of Corrective Action Plans (Resolution 2021-
1). 3 ayes and 0 nays. Resolution 2021-1 was passed. 



JANUARY 2021 MSB  
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

 
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN MONITORING CERTIFICATIONS OF COMPLIANCE FROM 2 LOCAL GOVERNMENTS 
(2 PLANS) (RESOLUTION 2021-2) 
Nick Brousseau was asked to review the Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Certifications of Compliance 
(Resolution 2021-2) with the Board: 
 

• City of Hart (Compliant)  
• City of Ionia (Compliant) 

 

A motion was made to approve the Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Certifications of Compliance (Resolution 
2021-2) by Barry Howard and supported by John Lamerato.  
 
The Board unanimously approved the Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Certifications of Compliance 
(Resolution 2021-2). 3 ayes and 0 nays. Resolution 2021-2 was passed. 
 
 

REMOVAL FROM CORRECTIVE ACTION PROCESS AND PURVIEW OF BOARD (RESOLUTION 2021-3) 
Nick Brousseau was asked to review the Removal from Corrective Action Process and Purview of Board 
(Resolution 2021-3) with the Board: 
 

• City of Alpena (OPEB) 
• Mackinaw County Road Commission (OPEB) 
• City of Montrose (OPEB) 

 

A motion was made to approve the Removal from Corrective Action Process and Purview of Board (Resolution 
2021-3) by John Lamerato and supported by Barry Howard.  
 
The Board unanimously approved the Removal from Corrective Action Process and Purview of Board 
(Resolution 2021-3). 3 ayes and 0 nays. Resolution 2021-3 was passed. 
 
 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN NONCOMPLIANCE (RESOLUTION 2021-4) 
Nick Brousseau was asked to review the Corrective Action Plan Noncompliance (Resolution 2021-4) with the 
Board: 
 

• Muskegon Housing Commission 
• Ontonagon County Economic Development Corporation 
• Woodlands Behavioral Healthcare Network 

 

A motion was made to approve the Corrective Action Plan Noncompliance (Resolution 2021-4) by Barry 
Howard and supported by John Lamerato.  
 
The Board unanimously approved the Corrective Action Plan Noncompliance (Resolution 2021-4).    3 ayes and 
0 nays. Resolution 2021-4 was passed. 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comment. 
 
 

BOARD COMMENT 
Eric Scorsone thanked Treasury staff. 
 
 

NEXT MEETING 



JANUARY 2021 MSB  
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

 
The next regular meeting will be on February 17, 2021 at 11:00 a.m. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
A motion was made to adjourn by Barry Howard and supported by John Lamerato.  
 
The Board unanimously approved the motion to adjourn. The motion was passed with 3 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 11:23 a.m. 



Treasury’s Public Act 202 of 2017 Update 
As of 2/11/2021

Table 1: Upcoming CAP Reviews 

CAP Monitoring Notifications and Reviews 
• A total of 132 local governments have been sent monitoring certification requests to date
• 66 local governments have returned to Treasury

Table 2: CAP Monitoring Certification of Compliance Reviews 

Treasury Department Communication and Outreach Report 
• 264 one-on-one 30-minute calls scheduled by local governments to discuss the Public Act 202 process

 10 individual calls since the January Board meeting

Local Government COVID-19 Webpage 
• www.Michigan.gov/Treasury | Local Government | COVID-19 Updates for Local Governments and School

Districts 
 Local government resources and Treasury guidance
 Registration for Treasury webinars and links to previous webinars
 Treasury will continue to provide additional webinars as information becomes available

Public Act 202 of 2017: Corrective Action Plan Review Schedule 
LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT TYPE 
Tentative Month of Corrective Action Plan Review 

February  March  April  May  June  
Non Primary 0 0 0 0 0 

Primary 0 0 0 0 0 
Total 0 0 0 0 0 

Public Act 202 of 2017: Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Schedule 

Monitoring Phase 
Tentative Month of Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Certification 

January 
 

February 
 

March  April  May  June  July  

Monitoring 
Certification Sent 19 9 4 6 6 6 5 

Monitoring 
Certification Due 20 20 19 9 4 6 6 

Board to Review 2 11 20 20 20 20 19 

http://www.michigan.gov/Treasury


4425 (Rev. 01-19) 

 GRETCHEN WHITMER 
GOVERNOR 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 

LANSING 
RACHAEL EUBANKS 

STATE TREASURER 

DATE: February 17, 2021 

TO:  The Municipal Stability Board (the Board) 

FROM: Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD), Department of Treasury 

SUBJECT: Failure to Make Required Pension Contribution(s): Underfunded Local 
Government 

Current Status: On January 25, 2021, the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (MERS) 
notified the State Treasurer that the Village of Ontonagon again failed to make a portion of its 
required minimum pension payment in September 2020. Per MERS policy, failure to make a 
payment for more than 90 days may lead to the pursuant of a judgment levy or removal from 
the MERS system.  

According to Public Act 202 of 2017 (the Act), the Village is required to submit a corrective 
action plan (CAP) for its underfunded MERS pension system. The Municipal Stability Board 
(the Board) approved the Village’s OPEB CAP but denied the MERS pension CAP for being 
unaffordable since the pension Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) payment in 2035 
will account for nearly 100% of the Village’s 2017 governmental revenues. 

Next Steps: No action is required by the Board at this time. If the Village submits a revised 
CAP for its MERS pension system that is approved by the Board, the Village will be reviewed 
by the Board as part of the monitoring process for all underfunded systems which is scheduled 
to occur approximately every two years.  

At any time, the Village may submit a new pension corrective action plan for the Board for 
review to become compliant with the Act. 

As previously approved by the Board at their June 2020 meeting, local governments with the 
most significant sustainability concerns may be proactively identified by Treasury for a 
comprehensive individualized review. The CEFD is working with the Village to assist in 
becoming compliant with the Act. In the summer of 2020, Treasury funded a third-party review 
of the Villages’ pension system. The CEFD continues to provide technical support to the Village 
to assist with the implementation and recommendations from the pension system review.   

P.O. BOX 30728 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-8228 
www.michigan.gov/treasury 

http://www.michigan.gov/Treasury


MUNICIPAL STABILITY BOARD 
RESOLUTION 2021-5 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN MONITORING COMPLIANCE 

WHEREAS, the Michigan legislature passed the Protecting Local Government Retirement 
and Benefits Act, MCL 38.2801 et. seq. (the “Act”), creating the Municipal Stability Board (the 
“Board”) for the purpose of reviewing and approving corrective action plans submitted by 
municipalities addressing the underfunded status of their municipal retirement systems (the 
“Corrective Action Plan”) as well as for monitoring compliance with those plans; 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Treasury (“Treasury”) provides administrative 
services to the Board; 

WHEREAS, the Act requires the Board to certify not less than every 2 years a local unit 
of government’s (a “Municipality”) compliance with the Act and any Corrective Action Plan.  

WHEREAS, the Board passed Resolution 2020-11 adopting the Corrective Action Plan 
Monitoring Policy and Procedures (“Monitoring Procedures”); 

WHEREAS, the Board previously approved the Municipalities’, listed on Appendix A and 
attached to this Resolution, Corrective Action Plans;  

WHEREAS, Treasury and the Board have reviewed the Municipalities’ compliance with 
their respective Corrective Action Plans and the Act pursuant to the Monitoring Procedures; 
and  

 WHEREAS, Treasury has submitted recommendations whether to certify that the 
municipalities listed on Appendix A attached hereto are in substantial compliance with the Act. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board hereby certifies that the Municipalities 
Corrective Action Plans listed on Appendix A notated as Compliant are in substantial 
compliance with the Act and their respective Corrective Action Plans; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby certifies that the Municipalities Corrective 
Action Plans listed on Appendix A notated as Compliant with Conditions are in substantial 
compliance with the Act and their respective Corrective Action Plans, provided that the 
Municipalities meet the requirements identified by the Board by the next certification date (the 
“Compliance Conditions”); 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board determines the Municipalities’ notated as 
noncompliant are not in substantial compliance with their respective Corrective Action Plan 
and/or the Act (the “Noncompliance Determination”); 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Treasury is directed to provide relevant Municipalities 
with notification of the Board’s detailed Compliance Conditions and reasons for the 
Noncompliance Determination within fifteen days of this resolution;  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Municipalities will have sixty days to address the 
reasons for the Noncompliance Determination from the date of the notification of such 
reasons; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Municipalities who fail to address the reasons for the 
Noncompliance Determination within sixty days will be deemed in noncompliance with the Act 
pursuant to MCL 38.2810(6). 

Ayes: 
Nays: 
Recused: 
Lansing, Michigan 
February 17, 2021 



Color Code Key

Green meets CAP Monitoring Criteria Underfunded Status

Yellow partially meets CAP Monitoring 
Criteria Substantial Changes

Red does not meet CAP Monitoring Criteria Sustainability

# Local Government Municode
Fiscal Year 
Underfunded System Type Date Received

Underfunded 
Status

Substantial 
Changes Sustainability

Treasury 
Recommendation

CAP Monitoring Certification Form 
Link

1 Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority 097516 2017 OPEB 9/21/2020 Yes Yes Yes Compliant
Bay Metropolitan Transportation 
Authority - OPEB

2 Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority 097516 2017 Pension 9/21/2020 Yes Yes Yes Compliant
Bay Metropolitan Transportation 
Authority - Pension

3 Beecher Metropolitan District 257504 2017 OPEB 10/14/2020 Yes Yes Yes Compliant
Beecher Metropolitan District - 
OPEB

4 City of East Lansing 332010 2017 Pension 11/12/2020 Yes Yes Partial Compliant City of East Lansing - Pension
5 City of Escanaba 212010 2017 Pension 10/13/2020 Yes Yes Partial Compliant City of Escanaba - Pension
6 City of Fraser 502030 2017 OPEB 1/7/2021 Yes Yes Partial Compliant City of Fraser - OPEB
7 City of Fraser 502030 2017 Pension 1/7/2021 Yes Yes Partial Compliant City of Fraser - Pension

8 Gratiot County Road Commission 290100 2017 OPEB 10/29/2020 Yes Yes Yes Compliant
Gratiot County Road Commission - 
OPEB

9 Marquette City Board of Light and Power 527513 2017 OPEB 10/13/2020 Yes Yes Yes Compliant
Marquette City Board of Light and 
Power - OPEB

10 City of Southfield 632200 2017
OPEB - Police 
and Fire 10/22/2020 Yes Yes Partial Compliant

City of Southfield - OPEB - Police 
and Fire

11 City of Southfield 632200 2017

OPEB -
Employees 
Retirement 
System 10/22/2020 Yes Yes Partial Compliant

City of Southfield - OPEB - 
Employees Retirement System

12 City of St. Johns 192030 2017 Pension 11/3/2020 Yes Yes Yes Compliant City of St. Johns - Pension

13
Suburban Mobility Authority for Regional 
Transportation 827550 2017 OPEB N/A No No No Noncompliant Failed to File

14 Wexford County Road Commission 830100 2017 OPEB 8/6/2020 Yes Yes Yes Compliant
Wexford County Road Commission - 
OPEB

 Is the local government addressing their underfunded status in the same timeframe or less, as the approved CAP?
Does the corrective action plan remain substantially the same as the original approved submission? 

The local government must certify the plan is still affordable, though detailed supporting documentation. This 
includes documentation that the local government’s retirement costs are not increasing at a rate greater than what 
can be afforded through reasonable revenue growth. Retirement costs also must not have substantially increased 
above the original projection in their approved CAP.

CAP Monitoring Criteria Key

Municipal Stability Board Resolution 2021-5 Appendix A, February 17, 2021

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/097516_Bay_Metropolitan_Transportaion_Authority_-_2017_Retiree_Health_Funding_Vehicle_with_MERS_CAP_Monitoring_715985_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/097516_Bay_Metropolitan_Transportaion_Authority_-_2017_Retiree_Health_Funding_Vehicle_with_MERS_CAP_Monitoring_715985_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/097516_Bay_Metropolitan_Transportation_Authority_-_2017_MERS_CAP_Monitoring_715986_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/097516_Bay_Metropolitan_Transportation_Authority_-_2017_MERS_CAP_Monitoring_715986_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/257504_Beecher_Metropolitan_District_-_2017_OPEB_CAP_Monitoring_Plan_715988_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/257504_Beecher_Metropolitan_District_-_2017_OPEB_CAP_Monitoring_Plan_715988_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/332010_City_of_East_Lansing_-_2017_MERS_CAP_Monitoring_715991_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/212010_City_of_Escanaba_-_MERS_2017_CAP_Monitoring_715996_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/502030_City_of_Fraser_-_Mich_Municipal_Employees_Retirement_System_-_2017_Pension_CAP_Monitoring_715997_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/502030_City_of_Fraser_-_MERS_OPEB_-_2017_OPEB_CAP_Monitoring_715998_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/632200_City_of_Southfield_-_Retiree_Healthcare_Benefits_Plan_and_Trust-FIre_and_Police_Retiree_-_2017_OPEB_CAP_Monitoring_716000_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/632200_City_of_Southfield_-_Retiree_Healthcare_Benefits_Plan_and_Trust-FIre_and_Police_Retiree_-_2017_OPEB_CAP_Monitoring_716000_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/632200_City_of_Southfield_-_Retiree_Healthcare_Benefits_Plan_and_Trust-SERS_Retirees_-_2017_OPEB_CAP_Monitoring_716001_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/632200_City_of_Southfield_-_Retiree_Healthcare_Benefits_Plan_and_Trust-SERS_Retirees_-_2017_OPEB_CAP_Monitoring_716001_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/192030_City_of_St_Johns_-_2017_CAP_Monitoring_716005_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/290100_Gratiot_County_Road_Commission_-_MERS_-_2017_OPEB_CAP_Monitoring_716008_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/290100_Gratiot_County_Road_Commission_-_MERS_-_2017_OPEB_CAP_Monitoring_716008_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/527513_Marquette_City_Board_of_Light_and_Power_-_MERS_-Retiree_Health_Funding_Vehicle_-_2017_CAP_Monitoring_716020_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/527513_Marquette_City_Board_of_Light_and_Power_-_MERS_-Retiree_Health_Funding_Vehicle_-_2017_CAP_Monitoring_716020_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/830100_Wexford_County_Road_Commission_-_2017_OPEB_CAP_Monitoring_716021_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/treasury/830100_Wexford_County_Road_Commission_-_2017_OPEB_CAP_Monitoring_716021_7.pdf


Treasury Recommendation 
Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance 

Certification 
Primary Government 097516 

Source: Retirement Report Fiscal Year 2019, Audited Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation: 

Compliance for the OPEB corrective action plan monitoring certification of compliance submitted by Bay 
Metropolitan Transportation Authority. If voted as compliant by the Board, Treasury and the Board will 
continue to monitor them for compliance per Public Act 202 of 2017 and continued implementation of 
their corrective action plan.  

Underfunded Status 

Is the local government addressing underfunded status according to originally approved plan? 

• Yes, Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority is addressing underfunded status by fiscal year
2018 as projected in originally approved plan.

Substantial Changes 

CAP Changes Implemented: 

• Bay Metro Transit continued to pay additional funds into their trust. Their actuary report for
GASB 74 and 75 show that in fiscal year 2019 they were 47.1%.

CAP Changes Not Implemented: 

• None noted.

Additional Changes Implemented 

• Bay Metro Transit plans on fully funding the plan by the end of fiscal year 2020.

Revised Corrective Action Plan Submitted? No 

Name 
of 
Systems 

Type of 
System 

Assets Liabilities Funded 
Ratio 

ADC Revenues ADC/Revenue CAP 
required? 

MERS Pension $10,495,075 $18,267,480 57.5% $968,874 

$8,215,275 

11.8% YES 

Retiree 
Health 
Funding 
Vehicle 

OPEB $554,371 $1,177,319 47.1% $138,294 1.7% YES 

Total $11,049,446 $19,444,799 $1,107,168 $8,215,275 13.5% 



Treasury Recommendation 
Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance 

Certification 
Primary Government 097516 

Sustainability 

Highest combined annual employer contribution over the next 5 years? 

• Fiscal Year: 2021
• Percentage of Revenues: 21.0%

Bay Metro Transit's annual payments increase approximately 7% over the next 4 years which is about 
2% per year. 

System Status for All Divisions: Open 

Plan size: members 123 

• Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 41
• Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 0
• Active employees: 82

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Criteria: 

• Underfunded Status:
o Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority has met the Board’s published monitoring

criteria for underfunded status.

• Substantial Changes:
o Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority has met the Board’s published monitoring

criteria for substantial changes.

• Sustainability:
o Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority has met the Board’s published monitoring

criteria for sustainability.

Supplemental Information: 

Bay Metro Transit included their most recent valuation showing that they are 47.1% funded in fiscal year 
2019. Additionally, they were 44.1% funded in fiscal year 2018. Treasury did reach out to them 
requesting additional supporting documentation for the sustainability section, which Bay Metro 
submitted. Also included is a Treasury created sustainability worksheet.  



Treasury Recommendation 
Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance 

Certification 
Primary Government 097516 

The Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD) contact: 

• The CEFD reached out on 12/29/2020 requesting the valuation/internal analysis to 
confirm the pension/OPEB projections.



Treasury Recommendation 
Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring 

Compliance Certification 
Primary Government 097516 

Source: Retirement Report Fiscal Year 2019, Audited Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation: 

Compliance for the Pension corrective action plan monitoring certification of compliance submitted by 
Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority. If voted as compliant by the Board, Treasury and the Board 
will continue to monitor them for compliance per Public Act 202 of 2017 and continued implementation 
of their corrective action plan.  

Underfunded Status 

Is the local government addressing underfunded status according to originally approved plan? 

• Yes, Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority is addressing underfunded status by fiscal year
2021 as projected in originally approved plan.

Substantial Changes 

CAP Changes Implemented: 

• Bay Metro created a surplus division with MERS and transferred additional funds into the
surplus division. Their most recent valuation shows them reaching 61% funded in 2021.

CAP Changes Not Implemented: 

• None noted.

Additional Changes Implemented 

• For fiscal year 2021, their board approved additional payments of up to $74,000 for their
pension system. While they did not provide documentation for this, their most recent valuation
shows them at 61% funded as of 12/31/2019.

Revised Corrective Action Plan Submitted? No 

Name 
of 
Systems 

Type of 
System 

Assets Liabilities Funded 
Ratio 

ADC Revenues ADC/Revenue CAP 
required? 

MERS Pension $10,495,075 $18,267,480 57.5% $968,874 

$8,215,275 

11.8% YES 

Retiree 
Health 
Funding 
Vehicle 

OPEB $554,371 $1,177,319 47.1% $138,294 1.7% YES 

Total $11,049,446 $19,444,799 $1,107,168 $8,215,275 13.5% 



Treasury Recommendation 
Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring 

Compliance Certification 
Primary Government 097516 

Sustainability 

Highest combined annual employer contribution over the next 5 years? 

• Fiscal Year: 2021
• Percentage of Revenues: 21.0%

Bay Metro's annual costs increase by approximately 7% from 2021 to 2024 which is about 2% a year. 

System Status for All Divisions: Open 

Plan size: members 166 

• Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 67
• Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 14
• Active employees: 85

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Criteria: 

• Underfunded Status:
o Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority has met the Board’s published monitoring

criteria for underfunded status.

• Substantial Changes:
o Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority has met the Board’s published monitoring

criteria for substantial changes.

• Sustainability:
o Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority has met the Board’s published monitoring

criteria for sustainability.

Supplemental Information: 

Bay Metro Transit submitted their most recent valuation showing that they are over 60% funded. 
Treasury reach out to them requesting additional supporting documentation for the sustainability 
section, which Bay Metro submitted. 



Treasury Recommendation 
Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring 

Compliance Certification 
Primary Government 097516 

The Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD) contact: 

• The CEFD reached out on 12/29/2020 requesting the valuation/internal analysis to 
confirm the pension/OPEB projections.



Treasury Recommendation 
Beecher Metropolitan District OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 257504 

Source: Retirement Report Fiscal Year 2020, Audited Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation: 

Compliance for the OPEB corrective action plan monitoring certification of compliance submitted by 
Beecher Metropolitan District. If voted as compliant by the Board, Treasury and the Board will continue 
to monitor them for compliance per Public Act 202 of 2017 and continued implementation of their 
corrective action plan.  

Underfunded Status 

Is the local government addressing underfunded status according to originally approved plan? 

• Yes, Beecher Metropolitan District is addressing underfunded status by fiscal year 2032 as
projected in originally approved plan.

Substantial Changes 

CAP Changes Implemented: 

• The District Board created a trust and has been investing $25,000 per year starting in 2019.
Their indepent CPA & Business consultant projected that with those annual payments they
should be 40% funded by fiscal year 2032.

CAP Changes Not Implemented: 

• None noted.

Additional Changes Implemented 

• None noted.

Revised Corrective Action Plan Submitted? No 

Name of 
Systems 

Type of 
System 

Assets Liabilities Funded 
Ratio 

ADC Revenues ADC/Revenue CAP 
required? 

MERS Pension $5,028,487 $7,253,858 69.3% $325,212 

$5,148,674 

6.3% NO 

Beecher 
Metropolitan 
District OPEB 
Plan 

OPEB $25,895 $2,023,254 1.3% $161,333 1.3% YES 

Total $4,546,427 $8,763,895 $451,613 $5,595,737 6.5% 



Treasury Recommendation 
Beecher Metropolitan District OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 257504 
Sustainability 

Highest combined annual employer contribution over the next 5 years? 

• Fiscal Year: 2022
• Percentage of Revenues: 11.0%

In the short term, the Beecher Metropolitan District's payments increase 47% from fiscal year 2020 to 
2022. This is an increase of over 15% per year during those 3 years. After that, the costs decrease. 

System Status for All Divisions: Closed 

Plan size: members 12 

• Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 7
• Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 0
• Active employees: 5

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Criteria: 

• Underfunded Status:
o Beecher Metropolitan District has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for

underfunded status.

• Substantial Changes:
o Beecher Metropolitan District has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for

substantial changes.

• Sustainability:
o Beecher Metropolitan District has partially met the Board’s published monitoring

criteria for sustainability.

Supplemental Information: 

Treasury emailed Beecher Metropolitan District requesting supporting documentation for the 
sustainability section which was submitted. Using the information they provided, the information in the 
sustainability section seems reasonable. 



Treasury Recommendation 
Beecher Metropolitan District OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 257504 

The Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD) contact: 

• The CEFD emailed Beecher Metropolitan District requesting supporting documentation 
for the sustainability section which was submitted.



Treasury Recommendation 
City of East Lansing Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 332010 

 

 

Source: Retirement Report Fiscal Year, Audited Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation:  

Compliance for the Pension corrective action plan monitoring certification of compliance submitted by 
City of East Lansing. If voted as compliant by the Board, Treasury and the Board will continue to monitor 
them for compliance per Public Act 202 of 2017 and continued implementation of their corrective action 
plan.  

Underfunded Status 

Is the local government addressing underfunded status according to originally approved plan? 

• Yes, City of East Lansing is addressing underfunded status by fiscal year 2025 as projected in 
originally approved plan   

Substantial Changes 

CAP Changes Implemented: 

• The City states they have and will continue to make supplemental pension payments. The East 
Lansing income tax was effective January 1, 2019, of which 60% of net new revenue is required 
to be supplemental pension payments. In addition, the General Fund of the City has 
appropriated funds each year for supplemental payments.  

• FY2021 budget includes approximately $5 million of supplemental pension payments. With the 
income tax in place, the intent is for the City to make at least $5 million of supplemental pension 
payments annually, which is an increase from the original plan of $3 million annually. This 
increase is in large part due to the income tax revenue being greater than originally projected. 
Approximately $4 million will come from income tax in FY2021, and this amount will increase as 
income tax revenue growth is experienced. The income tax expires after calendar year 2030. 

• Per the latest actuarial projections, contributing supplemental payments of $4-5 million per 
year, will result in a funding ratio greater than 60% by 2025. It will also level out the projected 
contributions in years after the income tax expires, leaving the annual payments much more 
manageable. 
 

Name of 
Systems 

Type of 
System Assets Liabilities Funded 

Ratio ADC Revenues ADC/Revenue CAP 
required? 

MERS Pension $101,706,961 $195,206,509 52.1% $8,029,429 
$59,017,837 

13.6% YES 

OPEB OPEB $17,124,194 $45,108,865 38.0% $3,060,802 5.2% NO 

Total  $118,831,155 $240,315,374  $11,090,231 $59,017,837 18.8%  



Treasury Recommendation 
City of East Lansing Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 332010 

 

• The following supplemental pension payments have been made: 
o FY2016 - $2,000,000  
o FY2017 - $1,000,000 
o FY2018 - $2,560,000 
o FY2019 - $1,156,044 
o FY2020 - $5,584,712 

CAP Changes Not Implemented: 

• None Noted. 

Additional Changes Implemented 

• None Noted 
Revised Corrective Action Plan Submitted? No 

 
Sustainability 

Highest combined annual employer contribution over the next 5 years? 

• Fiscal Year: 2022 
• Percentage of Revenues: 29.0% 

 

System Status for All Divisions: Open 

 

Plan size: members 772 

• Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 373 
• Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 127 
• Active employees: 272 

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Criteria: 

• Underfunded Status:  
o City of East Lansing has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for underfunded 

status 
 

• Substantial Changes: 
o City of East Lansing has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for substantial 

changes 
 

• Sustainability:  
o City of East Lansing has partially met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for 

sustainability 
 Current or future payments are greater than 22% or projected payments are 

increasing at a rate greater than 5% per year 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of East Lansing Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 332010 

 

Supplemental Information: 

Due to additonal contributions the local government is making in large part due to the implementation 
of a city income tax, the City is expected to reach 60% funded by the end of calendar year 2023. That is 
two years ahead of their expected funded date listed in their CAP of 2025. Over the next 4 years, the 
total projected employer contribution  increases by $1.5 million or 9%, but then declines in 2025. 
However, with the additonal contributions of 5 million dollars a year, the local government's 
ADC/revenue for all retirement systems is substantial, ranging between 27% and 29% over the next 5 
years. With that said, the payments as a percentage of revenues remains fairly consistent, peaking at 
29% in 2022 and then declining slightly. 

 

 

The Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD) contact: 

None.



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Escanaba Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 212010 

Source: Retirement Report Fiscal Year 2020, Audited Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation: 

Compliance for the Pension corrective action plan monitoring certification of compliance submitted by 
city of Escanaba. If voted as compliant by the Board, Treasury and the Board will continue to monitor 
them for compliance per Public Act 202 of 2017 and continued implementation of their corrective action 
plan.  

Underfunded Status 

Is the local government addressing underfunded status according to originally approved plan? 

• Yes, city of Escanaba is addressing underfunded status by fiscal year 2018 as projected in
originally approved plan.

Originally approved CAP shows a FY reaching funded status of 2019, not 2018 as the City listed on 
their CAP monitoring form. As of their FY 2020 Form 5572, they no longer trigger as underfunded. 

Substantial Changes 

CAP Changes Implemented: 

• On December 20, 2018, the City sent MERS a lump sum payment of 2.5 million dollars via wire
transfer. The City was 64% funded following that payment. The City is currently 62% funded due
to assumption changes that were implemnted with the 2019 valuation.

CAP Changes Not Implemented: 

• None noted.

Additional Changes Implemented 

Name of 
Systems 

Type of 
System Assets Liabilities Funded 

Ratio ADC Revenues ADC/Revenue CAP 
required? 

MERS Pension $23,642,564 $37,790,433 62.6% $1,769,395 

$12,115,350 22.0% 

YES 

Public 
Safety 
Officer 

Retirement 
System 

Pension $30,611,123 $36,002,332 85.0% $897,598 NO 

Total $54,253,687 $73,792,765 $2,666,993 $12,115,350 22.0% 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Escanaba Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 212010 
• None noted.

Revised Corrective Action Plan Submitted? No 

Sustainability 

Highest combined annual employer contribution over the next 5 years? 

• Fiscal Year: 2023
• Percentage of Revenues: 25.9%

The City excluded its public safety pension system from the originally submitted sustainability 
calculation. A revised worksheet was calculated using an estimated public safety pension ADC for the 
next 5 years. These numbers were calculated using a Treasury completed worksheet. Treasury was 
unable to confirm the revenue numbers, however they appear reasonable. 

System Status for All Divisions: Open 

Plan size: members 165 

• Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 121
• Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 15
• Active employees: 29

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Criteria: 

• Underfunded Status:
o City of Escanaba has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for underfunded

status.

• Substantial Changes:
o City of Escanaba has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for substantial

changes.

• Sustainability:
o City of Escanaba has partially met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for

sustainability.
 Current or future payments are greater than 22% or projected payments are

increasing at a rate greater than 5% per year.

Supplemental Information: 

Of the six divisions, one division is still open. The City is currently 62% funded and according to the most 
recent valuation, projected to remain funded according to the Act's requirements. The City's original 
CAP was to make a $2.5 million lump sum payment, which the City did, to get the system to 65% 
funded; however, market volatility and no additional payments above the ADC has resulted in their 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Escanaba Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 212010 
funding status slightly declining to 62%. The City's retirement costs remain high, with approxately 22% 
ADC/revenue for all systems combined. The MERS pension system ADC/revenues is increasing by 43.7%, 
or $873,716 in the next five years. 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Escanaba Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 212010 

The Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD) contact: 

• On 1/29/2021 the CEFD reached out to the City to request updated sustainability 
worksheet including ADC from the Public Safety pension as well as the Public Safety 
valuation.

Total Pension ADC (All 
Systems)

Additional Pension 
Contributions (All 

Systems)

Total OPEB Benefit 
Payment Amount (All 

Systems)

Additional OPEB 
Contributions (All 

Systems)
2020 $11,158,487 #REF!
2021 $2,723,284 $11,381,657 $746,191 22.5%
2022 $2,921,680 $11,609,290 $778,800 23.6% 7.3%
2023 $2,987,000 $11,841,476 $838,200 23.6% 2.2%
2024 $3,206,000 $12,078,305 $904,200 24.7% 7.3%
2025 $3,438,000 $12,319,871 $947,100 25.9% 7.2%

Projected Annual 
Revenue Growth 

(Please select)
2%

Annual 
Retirement 

Cost Increase

Projected Retirement 
Contributions as a 

Percent of Revenues

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Certification of Compliance: Section 4 Sustainability Certification Worksheet
Instructions

Pension Payments OPEB Payments

Fiscal Year
Projected (Actual) 

Governmental 
Revenues

Projected Enterprise Funds 
used for Retirement Costs



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Fraser OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 502030 

Source: Retirement Report Fiscal Year 2019, Audited Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation: 

Compliance for the OPEB corrective action plan monitoring certification of compliance submitted by City 
of Fraser. If voted as compliant by the Board, Treasury and the Board will continue to monitor them for 
compliance per Public Act 202 of 2017 and continued implementation of their corrective action plan.  

Underfunded Status 

Is the local government addressing underfunded status according to originally approved plan? 

• Yes, the city of Fraser is addressing underfunded status by fiscal year 2049 as projected in
originally approved plan.

Substantial Changes 

CAP Changes Implemented: 

• The city of Fraser has continued to make the annual payment of $207,000 to the OPEB trust
fund, most recently in 12/2020. Another payment will be made in 2021, and in subsequent years
for a total of 30 payments. Based on previously approved assumptions, these additional
contributions will increase the funded ratio to 40% by FY 2049.

CAP Changes Not Implemented: 

• None noted.

Additional Changes Implemented 

• None noted.

Revised Corrective Action Plan Submitted? No 

Name 
of 
Systems 

Type of 
System 

Assets Liabilities Funded 
Ratio 

ADC Revenues ADC/Revenue CAP 
required? 

MERS Pension $29,256,110 $60,362,900 48.5% $1,982,549 

$22,526,874 

8.8% YES 

City of 
Fraser 
OPEB 

OPEB $210,096 $41,313,595 0.5% $3,601,371 16.0% YES 

Total $29,466,206 $101,676,495 $5,583,920 $22,526,874 24.8% 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Fraser OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 502030 
Sustainability 

Highest combined annual employer contribution over the next 5 years? 

• Fiscal Year: 2023
• Percentage of Revenues: 22.3%

The City certified that their projected annual payments were not increasing by an amount greater 
than 5% per year over the next five fiscal years, but using updated information to calculate 
sustainability, the average rate of increase is 5.3% over the next 5 years. The majority of this increase 
is due to a large increase in projected OPEB premium payment from 2020 to 2021. Starting in 2021, 
the year-by-year rate of increase is well below 5%. 

System Status for All Divisions: Closed 

Plan size: members 160 

• Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 106
• Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 14
• Active employees: 40

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Criteria: 

• Underfunded Status:
o City of Fraser has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for underfunded status.

• Substantial Changes:
o City of Fraser has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for substantial changes.

• Sustainability:
o City of Fraser has partially met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for

sustainability.
 Current or future payments are greater than 22% or projected payments are

increasing at a rate greater than 5% per year.

Supplemental Information: 

The City provided its most recent valuation that included a projection of assets over the next 30+ years. 
Based on this projection, the City will reach 40% funded in 2049 as originally approved, assuming that 
liabilities remain relatively constant. Projected benefit payments are scheduled to increase by 69.5% 
over the next 15 years (4.6%/year) until the benefit payments begin to decrease. An updated 
sustainability projection is also included that was developed by Treasury using provided information. 
The worksheet was edited to only include actual projected payments for OPEB, rather than the full 
ADC. 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Fraser OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 502030 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Fraser OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 502030 

The Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD) contact: 

• The CEFD discussed requirements and due dates with the City multiple times in December 2020.



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Fraser Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 502030 

Source: Retirement Report Fiscal Year 2019, Audited Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation: 

Compliance for the Pension corrective action plan monitoring certification of compliance submitted by 
city of Fraser. If voted as compliant by the Board, Treasury and the Board will continue to monitor them 
for compliance per Public Act 202 of 2017 and continued implementation of their corrective action plan. 

Underfunded Status 

Is the local government addressing underfunded status according to originally approved plan? 

• Yes, the city of Fraser is addressing underfunded status by fiscal year 2026 as projected in
originally approved plan.

Substantial Changes 

CAP Changes Implemented: 

• The City has continued with the reduced multiplier for POAM members through collective
bargaining as described in approved CAP.

CAP Changes Not Implemented: 

• None noted.

Additional Changes Implemented 

• The City made three supplemental payments to MERS: $600,000 in July 2018, $600,000 in
February 2019, $800,000 in July 2019.

Revised Corrective Action Plan Submitted? No 

Sustainability 

Highest combined annual employer contribution over the next 5 years? 

Name 
of 

Systems 

Type of 
System Assets Liabilities Funded 

Ratio ADC Revenues ADC/Revenue CAP 
required? 

MERS Pension $29,256,110 $60,362,900 48.5% $1,982,549 

$22,526,874 

8.8% YES 

City of 
Fraser 
OPEB 

OPEB $210,096 $41,313,595 0.5% $3,601,371 16.0% YES 

Total $29,466,206 $101,676,495 $5,583,920 $22,526,874 24.8% 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Fraser Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 502030 
• Fiscal Year: 2023
• Percentage of Revenues: 22.3%

The City certified that their projected annual payments were not increasing by an amount greater 
than 5% per year over the next five fiscal years, but using updated information to calculate 
sustainability, the average rate of increase is 5.3% over the next 5 years. The majority of this increase 
is due to a large increase in projected OPEB premium payment from 2020 to 2021. Starting in 2021, 
the year-by-year rate of increase is well below 5%. 

System Status for All Divisions: Open 

Plan size: members 192 

• Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 109
• Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 27
• Active employees: 56

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Criteria: 

• Underfunded Status:
o City of Fraser has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for underfunded status.

• Substantial Changes:
o City of Fraser has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for substantial changes.

• Sustainability:
o City of Fraser has partially met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for

sustainability.
 Current or future payments are greater than 22% or projected payments are

increasing at a rate greater than 5% per year.

Supplemental Information: 

The City provided MERS charts document that the City is projected to reach 60% in approximately 
2026, in line with the originally approved CAP. Employer contributions for the pension system are 
projected to increase by 50% over the next 18 years (2.8%/year). An updated sustainability 
projection is also provided that was developed by Treasury using provided information. The 
worksheet was edited to only include actual projected payments for OPEB, rather than the full ADC. 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Fraser Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 502030 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Fraser Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 502030 

The Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD) contact: 

• The CEFD discussed requirements and due dates with the City multiple times in December 2020.



Treasury Recommendation 
Gratiot County Road Commission OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance 

Certification 
Primary Government 290100 

Source: Retirement Report Fiscal Year 2019, Audited Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation: 

Compliance for the OPEB corrective action plan monitoring certification of compliance submitted by 
Gratiot County Road Commission. If voted as compliant by the Board, Treasury and the Board will 
continue to monitor them for compliance per Public Act 202 of 2017 and continued implementation of 
their corrective action plan.  

Underfunded Status 

Is the local government addressing underfunded status according to originally approved plan? 

• Yes, Gratiot County Road Commission is addressing underfunded status by fiscal year 2018 as
projected in originally approved plan.

Substantial Changes 

CAP Changes Implemented: 

• As of March 31, 2020 with the latest submission of Form 5572, the Road Commission's OPEB is 
funded at 161.5%. The future liability has been eliminated through the Road Commission's 
collective bargaining agreement.

CAP Changes Not Implemented: 

• None noted.

Additional Changes Implemented 

• None noted.

Revised Corrective Action Plan Submitted? No 

Name of 
Systems 

Type of 
System Assets Liabilities Funded 

Ratio ADC Revenues ADC/Revenue CAP 
required? 

MERS Pension $10,962,908 $18,809,947 58.3% $655,672 

$12,763,893 

5.1% NO 

Gratiot 
County 
Road 

Commission 
OPEB 

OPEB $143,263 $88,700 161.5% $0 0.0% YES 

Total $11,106,171 $18,898,647 $655,672 $12,763,893 5.1% 



Treasury Recommendation 
Gratiot County Road Commission OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance 

Certification 
Primary Government 290100 

Sustainability 

Highest combined annual employer contribution over the next 5 years? 

• Fiscal Year: 2020
• Percentage of Revenues: 12.0%

System Status for All Divisions: Closed 

Plan size: members 6 

• Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 0
• Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 0
• Active employees: 6

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Criteria: 

• Underfunded Status:
o Gratiot County Road Commission has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for

underfunded status.

• Substantial Changes:
o Gratiot County Road Commission has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for

substantial changes.

• Sustainability:
o Gratiot County Road Commission has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for

sustainability.

Supplemental Information: 

The Road Commission was 161% funded in its most recent Form 5572 submission. No projected benefit 
payments from general fund remaining. Treasury recommends removing the Road Commission from 
the corrective action since they have addressed their underfunded status. 



Treasury Recommendation 
Gratiot County Road Commission OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance 

Certification 
Primary Government 290100 

The Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD) contact: 

• None



Treasury Recommendation 
Marquette City Board of Light and Power OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance 

Certification 
Primary Government 527513 

Source: Retirement Report Fiscal Year 2019, Audited Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation: 

Compliance for the OPEB corrective action plan monitoring certification of compliance submitted by 
Marquette City Board of Light and Power. If voted as compliant by the Board, Treasury and the Board 
will continue to monitor them for compliance per Public Act 202 of 2017 and continued implementation 
of their corrective action plan.  

Underfunded Status 

Is the local government addressing underfunded status according to originally approved plan? 

• Yes, Marquette City Board of Light and Power is addressing underfunded status by fiscal year
2020 as projected in originally approved plan.

Substantial Changes 

CAP Changes Implemented: 

• The Authority paid retiree premiums and made additional contributions to the health trust in
fiscal years 2018, 2019, and 2020. Based on the Authority's latest valuation, the system is
currently 69% funded. Additionally, in 2020, the Authority made changes to the retire healthcare
benefit that resulted in a $2.6 million reduction in total OPEB liability.

CAP Changes Not Implemented: 

• None noted.

Additional Changes Implemented 

• None noted.

Revised Corrective Action Plan Submitted? No 

Name of 
Systems 

Type of 
System Assets Liabilities Funded 

Ratio ADC Revenues ADC/Revenue CAP 
required? 

MERS Pension $28,336,961 $41,706,220 67.9% $1,226,628 

$50,078,669 

2.4% NO 

Retiree 
Health 

Funding 
Vehicle 

OPEB $10,360,226 $19,953,175 51.9% $1,328,449 2.7% YES 

Total $38,697,187 $61,659,395 $2,555,077 $50,078,669 5.1% 



Treasury Recommendation 
Marquette City Board of Light and Power OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance 

Certification 
Primary Government 527513 

Sustainability 

Highest combined annual employer contribution over the next 5 years? 

• Fiscal Year: 2024
• Percentage of Revenues: 8.3%

While documentation showing calculation of the sustainability section was not included, using the 
valuation provided, it appears the plan may be sustainable. 

System Status for All Divisions: Open 

Plan size: members 213 

• Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 149
• Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 0
• Active employees: 64

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Criteria: 

• Underfunded Status:
o Marquette City Board of Light and Power has met the Board’s published monitoring

criteria for underfunded status.

• Substantial Changes:
o Marquette City Board of Light and Power has met the Board’s published monitoring

criteria for substantial changes.

• Sustainability:
o Marquette City Board of Light and Power has met the Board’s published monitoring

criteria for sustainability.

Supplemental Information: 

According to the 2019 valuation, the Authority is currently 69% funded. Treasury recommends the 
Board consider removal from corrective action. 



Treasury Recommendation 
Marquette City Board of Light and Power OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance 

Certification 
Primary Government 527513 

The Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD) contact: 

• The CEFD contacted the Authority via email to request the information used to calculate 
their 2024 ADC for the sustainability section.



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Southfield Police and Fire Retirement System OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) 

Monitoring Compliance Certification 
Primary Government 632200 

Source: Retirement Report Fiscal Year 2020, Audited Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation: 

Compliance for the Fire and Police Retirement System OPEB corrective action plan monitoring 
certification of compliance submitted by the city of Southfield. If voted as compliant by the Board, 
Treasury and the Board will continue to monitor them for compliance per Public Act 202 of 2017 and 
continued implementation of their corrective action plan.  

Underfunded Status 

Is the local government addressing underfunded status according to originally approved plan? 

• Yes, the city of Southfield is addressing underfunded status by fiscal year 2019 as
projected in originally approved plan.

On the monitoring form, the City stated the year their CAP would be funded was 2018. Further 
review indicated that the CAP stated year 2019. 

Substantial Changes 

CAP Changes Implemented: 

• The city of Southfield transitioned our post-65 retirees to a Medicare Advantage platform
resulting in cost savings from reduced MA premiums vs. claims and fees, and factoring drug

Name of 
Systems 

Type of 
System Assets Liabilities Funded 

Ratio ADC Revenues ADC/Revenue CAP 
required? 

Southfield 
Employees’ 
Retirement 

System 

Pension $105,964,641 $169,536,468 62.5% $3,755,353 

$120,010,306 

9.0% 

NO 

Fire & 
Police 

Retirement 
System 

Pension $179,070,290 $285,139,154 62.8% $7,060,402 NO 

Fire and 
Police 

Retirement 
System 

OPEB $54,813,196 $112,170,001 48.9% $10,504,160 

16.5% 

YES 

Employees 
Retirement 

System 
OPEB $23,491,370 $66,673,444 35.2% $9,331,755 YES 

Total $363,339,497 $633,519,067 $30,651,670 $120,010,306 25.5% 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Southfield Police and Fire Retirement System OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring 

Compliance Certification 
Primary Government 632200 

rebates and RDS subsidy payments. This lowered projected actuarial premiums, stabilized trend 
increase, and reduced excise tax load. 

CAP Changes Not Implemented: 

• None noted.

Additional Changes Implemented 

• None noted.

Revised Corrective Action Plan Submitted? No 

Sustainability 

Highest combined annual employer contribution over the next 5 years? 

• Fiscal Year: 2025
• Percentage of Revenues: 20.8%

The City will continue to negotiate with its labor groups to share increases in costs of pension and 
OPEB benefits provided. The City will also continue to explore option and identify cost savings relate to 
changes in our service delivery model for retiree health care similar to the changes already 
implemented. 

System Status for All Divisions: Closed 

Plan size: members 464 

• Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 326
• Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 1
• Active employees: 137

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Criteria: 

• Underfunded Status:
o City of Southfield has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for underfunded

status.

• Substantial Changes:
o City of Southfield has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for substantial

changes.

• Sustainability:
o City of Southfield has partially met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for

sustainability.
 Current or future payments are greater than 22% or projected payments are

increasing at a rate greater than 5% per year.



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Southfield Police and Fire Retirement System OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring 

Compliance Certification 
Primary Government 632200 

Supplemental Information: 

The City provided an actuarial projection documenting the projected costs over the next 5 years for both 
pension systems and both OPEB systems. Additionally, the City provided a long term funding projection. 
The City's police and fire system reached 40% funded in FY 2019 as indicated in their originally approved 
CAP. Benefit payments for Police and Fire OPEB increase at approximately 5.0% over the next 5 years, and 
increase by 69% over the next 18 years (3.8%/year) until the benefit payment begins to decrease. 

The Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD) contact: 

• None



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Southfield Employees Retirement System OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring 

Compliance Certification 
Primary Government 632200 

Source: Retirement Report Fiscal Year 2020, Audited Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation: 

Compliance for the Employees Retirement System OPEB corrective action plan monitoring certification 
of compliance submitted by the city of Southfield. If voted as compliant by the Board, Treasury and the 
Board will continue to monitor them for compliance per Public Act 202 of 2017 and continued 
implementation of their corrective action plan.  

Underfunded Status 

Is the local government addressing underfunded status according to originally approved plan? 

• No, underfunded status will now be addressed by fiscal year 2026, which is within the Board’s
required timeframe.

The City revised data based on updated valuation data. Instead of being funded by 2025, they stated 
they will be funded by 2026. The updated funded year is still within Board's approved timeframe. 

Substantial Changes 

CAP Changes Implemented: 

• The city of Southfield transitioned our post-65 retirees to a Medicare Advantage platform
resulting in cost savings from reduced MA premiums vs. claims and fees, and factoring drug

Name of 
Systems 

Type of 
System Assets Liabilities Funded 

Ratio ADC Revenues ADC/Revenue CAP 
required? 

Southfield 
Employees’ 
Retirement 

System 

Pension $105,964,641 $169,536,468 62.5% $3,755,353 

$120,010,306 

9.0% 

NO 

Fire & 
Police 

Retirement 
System 

Pension $179,070,290 $285,139,154 62.8% $7,060,402 NO 

Fire and 
Police 

Retirement 
System 

OPEB $54,813,196 $112,170,001 48.9% $10,504,160 

16.5% 

YES 

Employees 
Retirement 

System 
OPEB $23,491,370 $66,673,444 35.2% $9,331,755 YES 

Total $363,339,497 $633,519,067 $30,651,670 $120,010,306 25.5% 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Southfield Employees Retirement System OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring 

Compliance Certification 
Primary Government 632200 

rebates and RDS subsidy payments. This lowered projected actuarial premiums, stabilized trend 
increase, and reduced excise tax load. 

CAP Changes Not Implemented: 

• None noted.

Additional Changes Implemented 

• None noted.

Revised Corrective Action Plan Submitted? No 

Sustainability 

Highest combined annual employer contribution over the next 5 years? 

• Fiscal Year: 2025
• Percentage of Revenues: 20.8%

The City will continue to negotiate with its labor groups to share increases in costs of pension and 
OPEB benefits provided. The City will also continue to explore option and identify cost savings relate to 
changes in our service delivery model for retiree health care similar to the changes already 
implemented. 

System Status for All Divisions: Closed 

Plan size: members 482 

• Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 300
• Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 30
• Active employees: 152

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Criteria: 

• Underfunded Status:
o City of Southfield has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for underfunded

status.

• Substantial Changes:
o City of Southfield has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for substantial

changes.



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Southfield Employees Retirement System OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring 

Compliance Certification 
Primary Government 632200 

• Sustainability:

o City of Southfield has partially met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for
sustainability.

 Current or future payments are greater than 22% or projected payments are
increasing at a rate greater than 5% per year.

Supplemental Information: 

The City provided an actuarial projection documenting the projected costs over the next 5 years for 
both pension systems and both OPEB systems. Additionally, the City provided a long term funding 
projection. The City's SERS OPEB system projecting to reach 40% funded in FY 2026 which is slightly 
longer than the year of 2025 as originally documented in the approved CAP. The change in funded year 
was based on updated valuation numbers from a valuation in 2019. Benefit payments for Police and 
Fire OPEB increase at approximately 5.0% over the next 5 years, and increase by 59% over the next 18 
years (4.6%/year) until the benefit payment begins to decrease. 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of Southfield Employees Retirement System OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring 

Compliance Certification 
Primary Government 632200 

The Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD) contact: 

• None



Treasury Recommendation 
City of St. Johns Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 192030 

Source: Retirement Report Fiscal Year 2020, Audited Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation: 

Compliance for the Pension corrective action plan monitoring certification of compliance submitted by 
the city of St. Johns. If voted as compliant by the Board, Treasury and the Board will continue to monitor 
them for compliance per Public Act 202 of 2017 and continued implementation of their corrective action 
plan.  

Underfunded Status 

Is the local government addressing underfunded status according to originally approved plan? 

• Yes, the city of St. Johns is addressing underfunded status by fiscal year 2023 as projected in 
originally approved plan.

Substantial Changes 

CAP Changes Implemented: 

• The City committed to making additional surplus payments each fiscal year of $37,500 to division
01; $130,000 to division 02; and $130,000 to division 11. In fiscal year 2018/2019, the City made
additional payments totaling $37,500 to division 01; $150,000 to division 02; and $350,000 to
division 11. ($75,000 on 8/23/18, $350,000 on 8/28/18, $112,500 on 6/25/19.) In fiscal year
2019/2020, the City made additional payments totaling $37,500 to division 01; $150,000 to
division 02; and $130,000 to division 11 ($45,625 on 10/7/19 and $271,875 on 12/13/19).

CAP Changes Not Implemented: 

• None noted.

Additional Changes Implemented 

• None noted.

Revised Corrective Action Plan Submitted? No 

Sustainability 

Highest combined annual employer contribution over the next 5 years? 

Name 
of 

Systems 

Type of 
System Assets Liabilities Funded 

Ratio ADC Revenues ADC/Revenue CAP 
required? 

MERS Pension $9,801,719 $17,878,254 54.8% $962,484 $7,490,675 12.8% YES 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of St. Johns Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 192030 
• Fiscal Year: 2023
• Percentage of Revenues: 18.3%

System Status for All Divisions: Closed 

Plan size: members 71 

• Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 12
• Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 4
• Active employees: 55

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Criteria: 

• Underfunded Status:
o City of St. Johns has Met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for underfunded

status.

• Substantial Changes:
o City of St. Johns has Met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for substantial

changes.

• Sustainability:
o City of St. Johns has Met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for sustainability.

Supplemental Information: 

Treasury was unable to verify that all divisions are closed to new hires. Treasury utilized the FY 2020 
audit to verify the additional contributions were made to the pension fund. The City appears to be 
following their CAP and is making progress on their underfunded status in the original timeframe. While 
the ADC payments increase approximately 40% between fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2026, the city's 
revenue appears to cover the rising cost, so the CAP appears to remain sustainable. 



Treasury Recommendation 
City of St. Johns Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification 

Primary Government 192030 

The Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD) contact: 

• On 1/19/21 the CEFD reached out to City asking for the information that was cut off from their 
form during submission. They responded same day with the information.



Treasury Recommendation 
Wexford County Road Commission OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance 

Certification 
Primary Government 830100 

Source: Retirement Report Fiscal Year 2019, Audited Financial Statements 

Staff Recommendation: 

Compliance for the OPEB corrective action plan monitoring certification of compliance submitted by 
Wexford County Road Commission. If voted as compliant by the Board, Treasury and the Board will 
continue to monitor them for compliance per Public Act 202 of 2017 and continued implementation of 
their corrective action plan.  

Underfunded Status 

Is the local government addressing underfunded status according to originally approved plan? 

• Yes, Wexford County Road Commission is addressing underfunded status by fiscal year 2025 as
projected in originally approved plan.

Substantial Changes 

CAP Changes Implemented: 
• The Road Commission closed its plan. The Road Commission funded its retiree health funding

vehicle by paying its ARC/ADC each year. They anticipate their OPEB will be 100% funded by FY
2022.

CAP Changes Not Implemented: 

• None noted.

Additional Changes Implemented 

• In November 2018, the Board approved terminating the WCRC retiree healthcare. The Road
Commission Board approved a $300/month stipend for retirees to purchase their healthcare
on the exchange and has funded its OPEB by paying the ARC/ADC each year.

Name 
of 

Systems 

Type of 
System Assets Liabilities Funded 

Ratio ADC Revenues ADC/Revenue CAP 
required? 

MERS Pension $13,077,337 $15,022,437 87.1% $532,102 

$10,968,990 

4.9% NO 

Wexford 
CRC 

OPEB 
OPEB $139,294 $458,819 30.4% $103,773 0.9% YES 

Total $13,216,631 $15,481,256 $635,875 $10,968,990 5.8% 



Treasury Recommendation 
Wexford County Road Commission OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance 

Certification 
Primary Government 830100 

Revised Corrective Action Plan Submitted? No 

Sustainability 

Highest combined annual employer contribution over the next 5 years? 

• Fiscal Year: 2020
• Percentage of Revenues: 11.7%

System Status for All Divisions: Closed 

Plan size: members 18 

• Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 18
• Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 0
• Active employees: 0

Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Criteria: 

• Underfunded Status:
o Wexford County Road Commission has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for

underfunded status.

• Substantial Changes:
o Wexford County Road Commission has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for

substantial changes.

• Sustainability:
o Wexford County Road Commission has met the Board’s published monitoring criteria for

sustainability.

Supplemental Information: 

The CRC provided MERS statements showing they current assets would have them 45.95% funded 
assuming liablities remain consistent from FY 2019. It is Treasury's recommendation that the Board 
review the CRC for potential removal from corrective action. According to the internal projection, over 
the next five years, the OPEB payments are decreasing by $105,865, or 100%. According to the internal 
projection, by 2023, the CRC will not have an OPEB payment. 



Treasury Recommendation 
Wexford County Road Commission OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance 

Certification 
Primary Government 830100 



Treasury Recommendation 
Wexford County Road Commission OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance 

Certification 
Primary Government 830100 

The Community Engagement and Finance Division (CEFD) contact: 

• None



MUNICIPAL STABILITY BOARD 
RESOLUTION 2021-6 

APPROVAL OF REQUEST TO RELEASE FROM MONITORING 

WHEREAS, the Michigan legislature passed the Protecting Local Government Retirement 
and Benefits Act, MCL 38.2801 et. seq. (the “Act”), creating the Municipal Stability Board (the 
“Board”) for the purpose of reviewing and approving corrective action plans submitted by local 
units of government addressing the underfunded status of their municipal retirement systems 
(the “Corrective Action Plan”) as well as for monitoring compliance with those plans; 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Treasury (“Treasury”) provides administrative 
services to the Board; 

WHEREAS, the Board passed “Requirements for Removal from Underfunded Status and 
Corrective Action Plan Monitoring” adopting the Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Removal 
Policy and Procedures (the “Monitoring Procedures”); 

WHEREAS, The Board has previously approved Corrective Action Plans for the local units 
of government outlined on the attached Exhibit A (the “Local Governments”), all of which are 
now subject to the Monitoring Procedures; 

WHEREAS, the Local Governments have submitted requests to be released from the 
Board’s Monitoring Procedures;  

WHEREAS, Treasury has verified the Local Governments are no longer underfunded 
local units of government for purposes of the Act.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Local Governments are released from the 
Monitoring Procedures and their approved Corrective Action Plans. 

Ayes: 
Nays: 
Recused: 
Lansing, Michigan 
February 17, 2021 



 

 
 

P.O. BOX 30728 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-8228 
www.michigan.gov/treasury  

4425 (Rev. 01-19) 

 GRETCHEN WHITMER 
GOVERNOR  

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 
LANSING  

RACHAEL EUBANKS 
STATE TREASURER 

 
DATE:   February 17, 2020  
 
TO:    The Municipal Stability Board (the Board) 
 
FROM:  Community Engagement and Finance Division, Department of Treasury 

   
SUBJECT:  Removal from the Corrective Action Process and the Purview of Board   
 
Suggested Action: The Board motions to remove the local governments listed below from the 
corrective action process and the purview of the Board for subsequently filing the Retirement 
System Annual Report (Form 5572), showing that each local government now meets the 
funding requirements established under PA 202 of 2017 (the Act). Furthermore, each local 
government has requested removal from underfunded status per the Board’s approved 
procedures.  
 

I. Cadillac Housing Commission 

a. OPEB 

Requirements for Removal from Underfunded Status and Corrective Action Plan 
Monitoring: A local government in corrective action for failure to meet the Act’s funding 
requirements may request to be released by the Board from the corrective action plan process 
and purview of the Board if a subsequent year’s Form 5572 shows that they now meet the Act’s 
funding requirements. The Board may vote to release these local governments from the CAP 
process and purview of the Board, thereby removing underfunded status. 

Resolution 2021-6 Exhibit A 

http://www.michigan.gov/Treasury


From: Housing Commission Director
To: LocalRetirementReporting
Subject: FW: 837511 2017 Retirement Corrective Action Plan(s): Corrective Action Plan Monitoring
Date: Monday, February 8, 2021 1:20:46 PM

CAUTION: This is an External email. Please send suspicious emails to abuse@michigan.gov

Hello,
 
Please see e-mails below regarding our OPEB being 100% funded.  I received an e-mail to fill out the
5572 but don’t think we are required to.  I’d like to ge removed from the CAP monitoring process.
 
Please let me know if you require anything further.
 
Cadillac City Housing Commission Authority
Municipality Code:  837511
 
Thank you,
 
Carrie Ferguson, PHM
Executive Director
Cadillac Housing Commission
(231) 775-9491 ext. 103
director@cadillachousing.org
 

From: LocalRetirementReporting <LocalRetirementReporting@michigan.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, February 4, 2021 5:04 PM
To: Housing Commission Director <director@cadillachousing.org>
Subject: RE: 837511 2017 Retirement Corrective Action Plan(s): Corrective Action Plan Monitoring
 
Good Afternoon,
 
Thank you for your email regarding the Cadillac City Housing Commission Authority Public Act 202 of
2017 reporting requirements.
 
In fiscal year (FY) 2017, the Housing Commission’s Retiree Benefits Plan was determined to be
underfunded. In subsequent years, including most recently in FY 2019, the Housing Commission’s
funded ratio for its OPEB system no longer triggered as underfunded on the Retirement System
Annual Report (Form 5572) by at least 5% greater than the Act’s minimum funded ratios.
 
However, local governments remain in corrective action until the Municipal Stability Board (Board)
releases them from underfunded status and monitoring by the Board.
 

mailto:director@cadillachousing.org
mailto:LocalRetirementReporting@michigan.gov


A local government that received a determination of underfunded status and request to file a CAP
per Public Act 202 of 2017 (the Act), may be released from underfunded status and monitoring by
the Board as follows:
 

The local government filed a subsequent year’s Form 5572 showing that the underfunded
system now meets the Act’s funding requirements.

 
Local governments meeting this criterion may request to be removed from the CAP
process and purview of the Board.

 
OR

 
The local government may be removed during the CAP monitoring process if the
underfunded system has failed to trigger as underfunded during the last two annual
Form 5572 submissions. Alternatively, the local government may be removed during
the CAP monitoring process if the underfunded system(s) funded ratio is at least 5%
greater than the Act’s designated minimum funded ratio in the most recent Form 5572
submission (e.g. an OPEB system is 45% funded when underfunded status is below
40%).

 
Therefore, the Housing Commission may request to be removed from CAP monitoring by emailing
localretirementreporting@michigan.gov or by completing the CAP Monitoring Form 5720 (which
upon review by the Board may result in the City being removed from corrective action if
underfunded status has been addressed). Either option will be submitted to the Board for review. 
 
For more information regarding the Act, please visit Michigan.gov/LocalRetirementReporting for
step-by-step reporting instructions and helpful FAQs. If you would like to speak with a member of
our team, please email our office at LocalRetirementReporting@michigan.gov or schedule a phone
call appointment using the Local Retirement Calendar. A team member will contact you with a
conference number to call at your scheduled time.
 
Sincerely,
 
Local Retirement Reporting Team
Community Engagement and Finance Division
www.michigan.gov/LocalRetirementReporting
File and Search Reports | Treasury Covid-19 Information 
Local Retirement Reporting | Sign up for Email Alerts
 
 

From: Housing Commission Director <director@cadillachousing.org> 
Sent: Thursday, February 4, 2021 9:57 AM
To: LocalRetirementReporting <LocalRetirementReporting@michigan.gov>
Subject: FW: 837511 2017 Retirement Corrective Action Plan(s): Corrective Action Plan Monitoring
 

mailto:localretirementreporting@michigan.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.michigan.gov%2Ftreasury%2F0%2C4679%2C7-121-1751_51556_84499---%2C00.html&data=04%7C01%7CLocalRetirementReporting%40michigan.gov%7C47b0cdb130544e3a7e2e08d8cc5e3ee8%7Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1%7C0%7C0%7C637484052453659230%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=6AutSijpPLReLmlJe3urUae4YN7scbItnAnF3CAKTr4%3D&reserved=0
mailto:LocalRetirementReporting@michigan.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.schedulicity.com%2Fscheduling%2FMTLCMH&data=04%7C01%7CLocalRetirementReporting%40michigan.gov%7C47b0cdb130544e3a7e2e08d8cc5e3ee8%7Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1%7C0%7C0%7C637484052453659230%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=Sk%2FfiOiIqfVX2bPx3IhmZIqq0YYoUszbOtIn36StD5s%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.michigan.gov%2FLocalRetirementReporting&data=04%7C01%7CLocalRetirementReporting%40michigan.gov%7C47b0cdb130544e3a7e2e08d8cc5e3ee8%7Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1%7C0%7C0%7C637484052453669197%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=Dh%2FJuLSyAvmQ%2FQxYh5otMk%2F756Wx180pH0vSf%2FuVLN4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftreas-secure.state.mi.us%2FLAFDeform%2FTL41W71.aspx&data=04%7C01%7CLocalRetirementReporting%40michigan.gov%7C47b0cdb130544e3a7e2e08d8cc5e3ee8%7Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1%7C0%7C0%7C637484052453669197%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=yQr8Uhik6D6dhPoUbM41mN9OJvNXaVisONzPwjgZCXo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.michigan.gov%2Ftreasury%2F0%2C4679%2C7-121-1751_98769---%2C00.html&data=04%7C01%7CLocalRetirementReporting%40michigan.gov%7C47b0cdb130544e3a7e2e08d8cc5e3ee8%7Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1%7C0%7C0%7C637484052453679147%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=ZzHnC1i%2F7k7hIplGQSqGjFrMDUbnUGNRhKAouvkV9r8%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.michigan.gov%2Ftreasury%2F0%2C4679%2C7-121-1751_2194_84499---%2C00.html&data=04%7C01%7CLocalRetirementReporting%40michigan.gov%7C47b0cdb130544e3a7e2e08d8cc5e3ee8%7Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1%7C0%7C0%7C637484052453679147%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=1FGKDvu5rndxlDbR5RApZDsCwuf472Jx%2B9vuZS81qKI%3D&reserved=0
https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/MITREAS/subscriber/new?qsp=MITREAS_1
mailto:director@cadillachousing.org
mailto:LocalRetirementReporting@michigan.gov


CAUTION: This is an External email. Please send suspicious emails to abuse@michigan.gov

 

Hello,
 
I received a letter from the Dept. of Treasury back on 7/8/20 for the fiscal year 2019 that stated the “none of your
retirement systems meet the definition of underfunded status.”
 
Our OPEB is funded fully at 100%, we don’t have to put any more funds into the account, and the ONE retiree that is
grandfathered in on this retired in July of 2020, will be 65 years old next year, and then we will be done with this
whole process.
 
My question is this:  since we are (and you are aware that we are) fully funded, do I have to fill out these forms?  I
would be more than happy to send you a copy of the letter I am referring to.  I do appreciate your time in this
matter.
 
Cadillac City Housing Commission Authority
Our municipality code is 837511
 
Carrie Ferguson, PHM
Executive Director
Cadillac Housing Commission
(231) 775-9491 ext. 103
director@cadillachousing.org
 

From: LocalRetirementReporting <LocalRetirementReporting@michigan.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 2, 2021 4:08 PM
To: Housing Commission Director <director@cadillachousing.org>
Subject: 837511 2017 Retirement Corrective Action Plan(s): Corrective Action Plan Monitoring
 
Dear Administrative Officer or Designee,
 
Please review the attached letter regarding your local government’s compliance with Public Act 202 of 2017.
 
Sincerely,
 
Michigan Department of Treasury
Local Retirement Reporting Team
www.michigan.gov/LocalRetirementReporting
 
File and Search Reports | Treasury Covid-19 Information 
Local Retirement Reporting | Sign up for Email Alerts
 

mailto:abuse@michigan.gov
mailto:director@cadillachousing.org
mailto:LocalRetirementReporting@michigan.gov
mailto:director@cadillachousing.org
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.michigan.gov%2FLocalRetirementReporting&data=04%7C01%7CLocalRetirementReporting%40michigan.gov%7C47b0cdb130544e3a7e2e08d8cc5e3ee8%7Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1%7C0%7C0%7C637484052453689099%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=hrgLdK%2Bm772zao%2FTB3ajpaf%2BhV0kjNG5J22yPqXnkdM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftreas-secure.state.mi.us%2FLAFDeform%2FTL41W71.aspx&data=04%7C01%7CLocalRetirementReporting%40michigan.gov%7C47b0cdb130544e3a7e2e08d8cc5e3ee8%7Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1%7C0%7C0%7C637484052453689099%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=O12cDUTspEjKQXAxU%2BaOBoUizkvNBPRUSMi30g2SZ8g%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.michigan.gov%2Ftreasury%2F0%2C4679%2C7-121-1751_98769---%2C00.html&data=04%7C01%7CLocalRetirementReporting%40michigan.gov%7C47b0cdb130544e3a7e2e08d8cc5e3ee8%7Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1%7C0%7C0%7C637484052453699062%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=obPVjTNqlVhdZqcXmzDa7%2BE5U4xszR48axWEy5pfIfY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.michigan.gov%2Ftreasury%2F0%2C4679%2C7-121-1751_2194_84499---%2C00.html&data=04%7C01%7CLocalRetirementReporting%40michigan.gov%7C47b0cdb130544e3a7e2e08d8cc5e3ee8%7Cd5fb7087377742ad966a892ef47225d1%7C0%7C0%7C637484052453699062%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=CUlmmEwcXb829tnfNotgTwa5T%2FBFOxPBgJtvoKKY3ao%3D&reserved=0
https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/MITREAS/subscriber/new?qsp=MITREAS_1


MUNICIPAL STABILITY BOARD 
RESOLUTION 2021-7 

RELEASE FROM MONITORING 

WHEREAS, the Michigan legislature passed the Protecting Local Government Retirement 
and Benefits Act, MCL 38.2801 et. seq. (the “Act”), creating the Municipal Stability Board (the 
“Board”) for the purpose of reviewing and approving corrective action plans submitted by local 
units of government addressing the underfunded status of their municipal retirement systems 
(the “Corrective Action Plan”) as well as for monitoring compliance with those plans; 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Treasury (“Treasury”) provides administrative 
services to the Board; 

WHEREAS, the Board passed Resolution 2020-11 adopting the Corrective Action Plan 
Monitoring Policy and Procedures (the “Monitoring Procedures”); (the “Monitoring 
Procedures”); 

WHEREAS, the Board passed “Requirements for Removal from Underfunded Status and 
Corrective Action Plan Monitoring” adopting the Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Removal 
Policy and Procedures (the “Removal Requirements”); 

WHEREAS, the Board has previously approved Corrective Action Plans for the local units 
of government outlined on the attached Exhibit B (the “Local Governments”), all of which are 
now subject to the Monitoring Procedures; 

WHEREAS, Treasury has verified the Local Governments are no longer underfunded 
local units of government for purposes of the Act.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Local Governments have sufficiently met the 
Removal Requirements; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Local Governments are released from the Monitoring 
Procedures and their approved Corrective Action Plans. 

Ayes: 
Nays: 
Recused: 
Lansing, Michigan 
February 17, 2021 



 

 
 

P.O. BOX 30728 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-8228 
www.michigan.gov/treasury  

4425 (Rev. 01-19) 

 GRETCHEN WHITMER 
GOVERNOR  

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 
LANSING  

RACHAEL EUBANKS 
STATE TREASURER 

 
DATE:   February 17, 2021  
 
TO:    The Municipal Stability Board (the Board) 
 
FROM:  Community Engagement and Finance Division, Department of Treasury 

  
SUBJECT:  Board Removal from the Corrective Action Process and the Purview of Board  
 
Suggested Action: The Board motions to remove the local governments listed below from the 
corrective action process and the purview of the Board following the local government 
submission of the Corrective Action Plan Monitoring: Application for Certification of 
Compliance (Form 5720), showing that each local government now meets the Board’s 
established criteria for removal from underfunded status and purview of the Board.  
 

I. Gratiot County Road Commission 

a. OPEB – Most recent retirement submission (Form 5572) shows 161% funded 

II. Marquette Board of Light and Power 

a. OPEB – Most recent retirement submission (Form 5572) shows 51.9% funded 

III. Wexford County Road Commission 

a. OPEB – Monitoring submission (Form 5720) shows 45.9% funded 

Requirements for Removal from Underfunded Status and Corrective Action Plan 
Monitoring: The local government may be removed during the CAP monitoring process if the 
underfunded system has failed to trigger as underfunded during the last two annual Form 5572 
submissions. Alternatively, the local government may be removed during the CAP monitoring 
process if the underfunded system(s) funded ratio is at least 5% greater than the Act’s 
designated minimum funded ratio in the most recent Form 5572 submission (e.g. an OPEB 
system is 45% funded when underfunded status is below 40%). 
 
The Board may vote to release these local governments from the CAP process and purview of 
the Board, thereby removing underfunded status. 

Resolution 2021-7 Exhibit B 

http://www.michigan.gov/Treasury


MUNICIPAL STABILITY BOARD 
RESOLUTION 2021-8 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN NONCOMPLIANCE 

WHEREAS, the Michigan legislature passed the Protecting Local Government Retirement 
and Benefits Act, MCL 38.2801 et. seq. (the “Act”), creating the Municipal Stability Board (the 
“Board”) for the purpose of reviewing and approving corrective action plans submitted by 
municipalities addressing the underfunded status of their municipal retirement systems (the 
“Corrective Action Plan”); 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Treasury (“Treasury”) provides administrative 
services to the Board; 

WHEREAS, the local units of government listed on Exhibit C were notified by Treasury of 
their underfunded status pursuant to MCL 38.2805 (the “Municipalities”);  

WHEREAS, MCL 38.2810 requires the Municipalities to submit a Corrective Action Plan 
within 180 days from the date underfunded status was determined; and      

WHEREAS, the Municipalities failed to submit their Corrective Action Plans to the Board 
by the 180-day deadline.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board finds the Municipalities to be in 
noncompliance with the Act; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board directs the Municipalities to immediately submit 
their respective Corrective Action Plans to the Board. 

Ayes: 
Nays: 
Recused: 
Lansing, Michigan 
February 17, 2021   



 

 
 

P.O. BOX 30728 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-8228 
www.michigan.gov/treasury 

4425 (Rev. 01-19) 

GRETCHEN WHITMER 
GOVERNOR  

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 
LANSING  

RACHAEL EUBANKS 
STATE TREASURER 

 
 

DATE:   February 17, 2021  
 
TO:    The Municipal Stability Board (the Board) 
 
FROM:  Community Engagement and Finance Division, Department of Treasury 

  
SUBJECT:  Delinquent Corrective Action Plan(s) 
 
Suggested Action: The Board motions to notify the following local government(s) that they are 
in noncompliance with Public Act 202 of 2017 (the Act) for failure to submit a corrective action 
plan(s) to the Board within 180 days after the determination of underfunded status: 
  

I. Alma City Housing Commission 
a. No Retirement Submission 

 
Corrective Action Plan Noncompliance: Per Section 10(6) of the Act, “If the board determines 
that an underfunded local unit of government is not in substantial compliance under this 
subsection, the board shall within 15 days provide notification and report to the local unit of 
government detailing the reasons for the determination of noncompliance with the corrective 
action plan. The local unit of government has 60 days from the date of the notification to 
address the determination of noncompliance.” 
 

Resolution 2021-8 Exhibit C 

http://www.michigan.gov/Treasury

	Agenda
	Approval of Meeting Minutes: January 20, 2021
	Treasury’s Public Act 202 of 2017 Update
	Retirement Pension Payment Deficiency Update
	Corrective Action Plan Monitoring Compliance (2021-5)
	Appendix A
	Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance
	Bay Metropolitan Transportation Authority Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring
	Beecher Metropolitan District OPEB Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification
	City of East Lansing Pension Corrective Action Plan (CAP) Monitoring Compliance Certification
	City of Escanaba Pension 
	City of Fraser OPEB 
	City of Fraser Pension 
	Gratiot County Road Commission OPEB 
	Marquette City Board of Light and Power OPEB 
	City of Southfield Police and Fire Retirement System OPEB 
	City of Southfield Employees Retirement System OPEB 
	City of St. Johns Pension 
	Wexford County Road Commission OPEB


	Local Government Request for Removal from Corrective Action (Resolution 2021-6)
	Exhibit A
	Cadillac Housing Commission Email

	Board Removal from Corrective Action (Resolution 2021-7)
	Exhibit B

	Corrective Action Plan Noncompliance (2021-8)
	Exhibit C




